

Seniors Digital Guide

A handbook created by the Logan Youth Action Group to support seniors living in Logan to get online



logan.qld.gov.au

logan.qld.gov.au/seniors

Acknowledgment of country

The Logan Youth Action Group respectfully acknowledges the Traditional Custodians of the land, pays respect to Elders past, present and emerging, and extends that respect to all Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples in the City of Logan.



Contents

Introduction	4
How to use this guide	4
The benefits of connecting online	5
How to stay safe online	6
Scams and online safety	7
How to scan a QR code	7
How to use Google in a web browser	8
How to use Google app on iPad or iPhone	11
How to use Google app on Android	11
How to use Google Maps on a web browser	12
How to use Google Maps app	13
How to create an email address	14
How to send an email using your Gmail account	17
How to set up a Facebook account	18
How to send a text message on iPhone and iPad	20
How to send a text message on Android	21
How to add a new contact on iPhone and iPad	22
How to add a new contact on Android	23
How to make a video call on iPad and iPhone	24
How to take photos	26
How to take videos	27
How to view your photos and videos	31
How to look up a fitness video	32
Useful health and wellbeing webpages	34
Would you like to learn more?	34
References	34

Introduction

The Logan Youth Action Group (LYAG) is delighted to present the Seniors Digital Guide; a guide designed to support and empower Logan's senior community.

This guide provides practical tips and resources tailored specifically for seniors who want to improve their digital skills and discover ways to support wellbeing, belonging and community connections online.

The guide has been created by LYAG in partnership with the Logan Seniors Network and Logan City Council.

How to use this guide

The guide has been divided into the three most commonly used handheld devices iPad, iPhone, and Android.

To start, you can find your device in the table of contents and enjoy learning!





The benefits of connecting online

Digital skills and being online can help seniors stay connected in the following ways.



Staying connected with family and friends

Social media makes it easy to keep in touch with loved ones, no matter the distance. Sharing updates, photos and messages can help you maintain strong relationships.



Staying informed

Platforms like Facebook and X (formally twitter) offer news updates, articles, and information on various topics, keeping you informed about current news and events.



Reconnecting with old friends

Social media can help you reconnect with long-lost friends and classmates, rekindling old friendships and creating new memories.



\bigtriangledown

Learning something new

Many platforms offer educational content, tutorials, and videos. You can learn new skills and hobbies or stay updated on topics of interest.

Improving health and wellness

You can find support groups and communities focused on health and wellness. YouTube also has many fitness activity videos you can follow along to at home.



Providing entertainment

From videos and games to interesting articles and live events, the digital world offers a variety of entertainment options to keep you entertained.



How to stay safe online

Using online tools does come with risks and this section gives you tips and tricks that will help you to stay safe online.



Update your device

- Updating your device improves its performance and makes it more secure.
- Cybercriminals are always finding new ways to hack into devices.
- When it is time to update your device, it should send you a pop-up message and you can schedule an update for a convenient time to you. You can also use your 'settings' and ask your device to automatically install updates.
- Updating your device to the newest version may also add new features and make it run faster.

Avoid scams!

- Scammers online attempt to trick users out of money or personal information, usually by email, phone, or text. Never click on suspicious links from government agencies, banks, hospitals, brokerages, charities, or bill collectors unless you are certain they are legitimate.
- You can usually spot a scam if they have grammatical errors or if the sender is asking you to urgently click on a link. For example, a scam email might say 'your account is about to be shut down, click on this link within 24 hours to save your account'.
- If you are unsure, forget it!



Block unwanted communication

- Scammers or cyber bullies may try to interact with you on social media or text message.
- If you receive messages from unknown people, requests for money or bank details, or cyberbullying attempts, you can block them in your phone or social media settings.



Avoid public Wi-Fi

• Most free public Wi-Fi networks have very few security measures in place, which means others using the same network could easily access your device.



Use strong passwords

- Choose strong and unique passwords for all accounts related to your device, internet use, including Wi-Fi, email, bank accounts, social media etc.
- A strong password is one that includes upper and lower case letters, numbers, and symbols. For example: Friends24#!
- Try to use a combination of different passwords for different accounts.
- Never share your passwords. Save or write down your password somewhere safe to ensure it is not lost.

Scams and online safety

The internet is a fantastic resource and it allows us to connect and learn however there are risks. If you have concerns about online safety or scams, you can reach out to these services:



ScamWatch is run by the National Anti-Scam Centre to collect reports about scams and to provide advice on protecting yourself from scams. The Little Book of Scams is a great resource to learn about scams and how to protect yourself.

Be Connected

Every Australian online.

eSafety Commission's Be Connected is an Australian government initiative committed to building the confidence, digital skills and online safety of older Australians. Full of articles, tips, webinars and online courses from beginner to advanced.

Unsure whether something is a scam or not and just want to talk to another person? Call the Seniors Enquiry Line on **1300 135 500** weekdays 9 am to 5 pm (excluding Queensland and Brisbane public holidays). Seniors Enquiry Line provides free information sessions on scams, social and online safety in South-East Queensland. For more information, visit **seniorsenquiryline.com.au**

How to scan a QR code

QR codes give you fast access to websites, including ordering food at restaurants and cafes without having to type or remember a web address. You can use the camera on your iPad, iPhone, or Android device.

1	Open the camera from the home screen.
2	Hold your device so that the QR code appears in the viewfinder in the camera. Your device will recognise the QR code and display a notification.
3	Tap the notification to open the link associated with the QR code.
4	This should take you to the link/web page you want to visit or to the menu you want to order from if you are at a restaurant or café.

How to use Google in a web browser

Google is a great tool to look up information, photos, videos, and news about any subject you want. This section takes you through the steps to search for something on Google.

1. In your web browser (e.g. Google Chrome, Firefox, Safari), type **google.com** in the top navigation bar. It will take you to a screen like this:



2. Tap on your search bar, which is this section:

Search or type URL 🕴 🕴 🔅

3. Start typing in your search, for example:

a 🕈 🖬

G	top 10 restaurants in Logan	×	U	()

4. Search by pressing Enter on your keyboard

Google	1208 PM Ri 20 5ep	***	- T 92N
Google 😡		# 9, top 10 restaurants in logan	A + D
Q, top 10 restaurants in Logan 👃 🛞		G top 10 restaurants in logan - Doogle Search	
AB Images Maps Shopping Short-videos V	Contra Contra		
City Open now Within 1.5 km Culsine +	Google top 10 restaurants	in logan X 🎍 🔅 🔍	
Peoults for Legan Central GLD 4114 - Choose area 1	Al images Maps Shopping Videos	i News Books More Tools	
Places	City Within L6 km Open-mox	Culture + Ctod Wheelthan accessible entrance	
Child Statesy (5) Chil	Final for Logan Central GLD 4114 Choose		
0.11	tega herea tegachian con au Logar Co		
Q Ampusses Queensignd	THE 10 BEST Restaurants in Lo		
Kickintinn Logan Central 4.8 ***** GPQ Seafood : Cogen Central OLD	The best realisurants in Legan City include 1 Resilisant - Extraction Artisan Coffee	Kensington Taxem - Jimboumba House Bar &	
The ambience, cusine, and service ware at excelent?	Chan Lief		
	10 Of The Best Places To Eat In		
Erbil Bakery Pry Ltd 4.8	21 May 2024 — Extraction Artisan Coffee - Bu Crossant - Manok Park - St Cocs-Cafe - Suga		
4.8 (157) . \$1-20		e Greek Smokehouse.	

5. On this screen, you can tap on several different websites and sections. Below your search bar, you will see:

All Images Maps Shopping Videos News Books : More

- **6.** From here, you can find directions, images, and videos of restaurants in Logan. For directions, you can find more information on this in the How to use Google Maps section. You can now search anything on Google such as:
 - Public transport in Logan
 - Senior or social events in Logan
 - Medicare, Services Australia and so much more.

Do you know

A web browser is a platform where you can search other websites on the internet. Visit this QR code if you wish to learn more:



Results for Logan Central QLD 4114 · Choose area Places 9 4.8 4.1 Phở Mai vietnamese kitchen Erbil Bakery Pty Ltd Amputees Queensland Kickin'Inn Logan Central 4.8 ** * * (2K) Seafood · Logan Central QLD The ambience, cuisine, and service were all excellent!"

All

City

12:06

google.com

Google

Images Maps Shopping Short videos

Q top 10 restaurants in Logan

Open now Within 1.6 km

.11 ? 100

Ļ 0

Cuisine +

:

÷

4.8

Û

Erbil Bakery Pty Ltd 4.8 ***** (157) · \$1-20 Middle Eastern · Logan Central QLD Friendly service, delicious food,

Do you know

An app is a program that you can download onto your smart device (phone, tablet, computer). Visit this QR code if you wish to learn more on how to download and use an app:







Google











10

How to use Google app on iPad or iPhone

- Your iPad or iPhone may already have a pre-installed Google app. If not, you can download it from your App Store which you will find on your home screen.
- Once Google app has been installed, you can tap on it and start searching the same way as the previous section.





How to use Google app on Android

- Your Android phone may already have a pre-installed Google app. If not, you can download it from your Play Store which you will find on your home screen.
- Once Google app has been installed, you can tap on it and start searching the same way as the previous section.





How to use Google Maps on a web browser

Google Maps allows you to look up any address in the world and shows you the best route to get to your destination. This section takes you through the steps to search for directions on Google Maps on your iPad, iPhone, or Android device.

1. Open a web browser (e.g., Google Chrome, Firefox, Safari) and type **google.com.au/maps** into the top bar.



2. In the Search Google Maps section, you can type an address or a place you want to go.

(~	
	Search	Google	Maps	Q	\bigcirc
/		-			• /

3. For example, you can type one of the restaurants you may have found from the previous section. Type it in and search the same way you would with Google, then it should come up with this screen:



4. Now you can view directions, the address, the route to take, etc.



How to use Google Maps app

- 1. Your iPad, iPhone or Android device may already have a pre-installed Google Maps app. If not, you can download it from your App Store (iPad and iPhone) or Google Play Store (Android) which you will find on your home screen.
- 2. Once Google Maps app has been installed, you can tap on it, it should look like one of these:



3. Tap on the app, then start typing in the search bar for the address or place you want to visit.



4. Tapping on the Directions tab and pressing Start will give step-by-step directions over voice communication to get to your destination. The directions usually default to how to DRIVE to your destination (as shown by the highlighted car icon). This can be changed to trains or walking directions etc by pressing the other icon buttons. E.g. if you are taking the train, press the 'train' icon.



5. Make sure your volume is up by pressing the buttons on the side of your device.

How to create an email address

An email address is used by many businesses these days to contact you, to access websites such as online shopping and sometimes it is necessary for 'signing up' to email lists and other social platforms like Facebook etc. There are several email address providers, but this section takes you through how to create an email address with Gmail.



7. Confirm you're not a robot by entering your G mobile number to get a verification code Get a verification code sent to your phone Confirm you're not a Phone number robot gle will verify this number via SMS (charges may apply) 8. Enter the 6-digit code that you have G received from your text message Enter the code Next 9. You may choose to add a recovery email G or skip Add recovery email The address where Google can contact you if there's unu activity in your account or if you get locked out. Skip Next 10. Review that everything is correct and G tap next Marco Pentiger Review your account info 0401341234 You can use this info when you need to sign in 11. Scroll through Privacy and Terms, G tap Agree if you agree to create your To create a Google Account, you'll need to agree to the **Privacy and Terms** email address. addition, when you create an account, we process you escribed in our Privacy Policy, including these key policy. Data we process when you use Google When you set up a Google Account, we store infl us like your name, email address, and telephone you use Google services to do things like write a all or comment on a YouTube video, we store the i In Galact of comment on a toulised week, or you create. When you search for a restaurant on Goog wide on You/Link, for example, we process activity – including information like the vide Dist. IP addresses, cookie data, and location we also process the kinds of information d you use appart or sites that use Google serv and the You/Like video player. Why we process it We process this data for the purposes described in our policy, scluding to: Help our services deliver more useful, custor ore relevant search results; nprove the quality of our services and develop new ones eliver personalized ads, depending on your account sett oth on Google services and on sites and apps that pertin ogle; rove security by protecting against fraud and ab iduct analytics and me vices are used. We also vices are used. Learn v Combining data We also combine this data for these purposes. For ex-

= M Gmail

/ Compose

 Inbox

 ☆
 Starred

 ③
 Snoozed

 ▷
 Sent

Drafts

Q. Search mail

D . C I

Primary

Get started with Gmail

We protect your privacy
 Ads in Gmail are never based on the con

Promoti

12. You are all done! You will be taken to your new Gmail inbox, and you can now start sending and receiving emails. Your email inbox should look like the picture on the right.



How to send an email using your Gmail account

 \rightarrow

 \rightarrow

- **2.** Tap the 'Compose' icon, to write a new email.

	15:21 0 🗤 🕫 🗹	
	x e þ	
	то	~
	From marcopentiger@gmail.com	~
	Subject	
	Compose email	
/		
		_
	qwertyuio	р
	asdfghjk	1
	☆ z x c v b n m	\otimes
	123 😄 space @ . retu	urn

3. Tap the 'To' text box, then type the email address of the person whom you want to send an email to.

15:22 0	- ? 🚥
×	▶ …
test@gmail.com	
From marcopentiger@gmail.com	~
Test	
Test email	
qwertyu i	o p
asdfghj	k I
☆ z x c v b n	m 🗵
123 😄 space	return
•	Ŷ

 Compose your email message. Tap the Send button to send your email.



1. To write an email, open Gmail app.

24						_		
×						0		
То								~
From	marce	openti	ger@g	mail.c	om			~
Subje	ect							
Com	pose e	mail						
Q	V E	= F	1 5	г	YU	ſ	I C) P
Q	W E	E F D	R T	G	ΥL	ſ	I C) P L
		-		-				
	s	D	F	G	H	J	к м	L

4. Tap the 'Subject' text box, then enter the subject you want to use.

How to set up a Facebook account

When connecting with family and friends on social media, the first step is choosing the right platform. A few user-friendly platforms include WhatsApp, Facebook, Instagram and TikTok. To make things easier, you can always check with your loved ones whether they have any of these platforms installed already. The following steps are applicable for all platforms mentioned above, but this guide will use Facebook.

Download the **Facebook** app from App store (iPhone or iPad) or Play Store (Android) which will look like this:



Do you know

- Follow the prompts to add a profile picture and/or a few details about yourself. You can adjust your privacy settings to control who sees your information.
- Search for people you know and send them friend requests or follow them. This can be completed faster if you allow the platform to access your contacts and phone numbers.





.1 ? 00 What's your name? Enter the name you use in real life Sumame \rightarrow Q W E R T Y U I O P A S D F G H J K L Z X C V B N M 🔇 ٠ 123 🕥 space next Ŷ



10:16 What's your gender? a can change who sees your gender on your file later 0 Male fer or if you'd rather not

 \rightarrow

1. Tap on **Get Started** to **2.** Enter your **first name** create a new account



5. Sign up using your mobile number



9. Tap on I agree

and last name

10:19

10:47

1

4

7 PORS

10. Enter the

confirmation code

- 3. Enter your birthday
- 4. Select your gender



- 11. Tap on Add picture
 - 12. Tap Done to complete the set up

19

How to send a text message on iPhone and iPad

You can use the **Messages** app to send text messages, images, and much more.

1. Open the Messages app on your iPad or iPhone, which will look like this





- Tap the button at the top right of your screen to start a New Message.
- **3.** Enter the contact's name or phone number into the **To** line.



 Write your message then tap on the blue arrow to send the message.



5. Your message has been sent to the other contact.



How to send a text message on Android

1. Open the Messages app on your home screen.



Messages



2. Tap the Start chat button.



3. Select the contact you'd like to message or enter the mobile number, then tap the **blue tick** icon at the bottom right of your screen.



🛨 🚯 Text message

--

8 0434

.....

8



5. Tap the blue arrow icon to send your message.



How to add a new contact on iPhone and iPad

11:55

1. Open the **Contacts** app on your home screen.



11:54 0	
< Lists	+
Contacts	
Q Search	\$
Bluey Smith	
A	
Voicemail Access	C
Chris Ahern	E F O
Darren Anderson	1
Annie	C.M.
Tod Anthony	L X N O P O
в	RST
Baba	×
Bingo	Y Z
BiQ	
Jonathan Brimacombe	
Home Brisbane	

- The contacts list will appear. Tap the
 + button to add a new contact.
- Add Photo Add Photo First name Last name Company Q W E R T Y U I O P A S D F G H J K L Z X C V B N M © 123 © space return @

. 1 🕆 🛙

3. Enter the contact information, first name, last name, mobile or email address address etc. if you like.



4. When you're finished, tap **Done**



5. Your new contact has been added.



How to add a new contact on Android

1. Open the **Contacts** app on your home screen.



Contacts



 The contacts list will appear. Tap the + button to add a new contact.



 Next, fill out their contact information and personal details.



4. When you're done, tap **Save** to add them as a contact.



5. Your new contact has been added.



How to make a video call on iPhone and iPad

Video calls are a great way to stay in touch with loved ones because you can see the person's face as if they were with you in the room. Many services like doctors and banks use video technology for appointments as an alternative to travelling to an in-person appointment so it's a good skill to learn and practice.

A common way to make video calls on an iPad or iPhone is with FaceTime. FaceTime is included with your device and is connected to your email address and/or phone number. FaceTime can only be used between iPad and iPhone users; you won't be able to use FaceTime to video call an Android device for example.

This section takes you through the steps to make a video call on FaceTime.

1. Open the FaceTime app.







-

14:29

2. Tap the New FaceTime button to make a new call

 Tap the plus sign to choose someone to call from your contacts. You can include multiple contacts in your call.



4. When you've

selected the

person, you want to

call, tap 🕲 to make

an audio call (voice-

only) or FaceTime

to make video call.



5. To end the call, tap the screen to show the FaceTime controls then tap
② End.

Seniors Digital Guide 25



How to take photos

Your device is a great tool to take photos and capture videos that last a lifetime. You can send photos and videos to loved ones or upload them to your social media account.

1. Find the Camera app on your home screen. Press the camera icon to open the app



2. Hold your device steady by using both hands



- 3. Frame your shot
 - Look at the screen
 - You will see what the camera is pointing at on the screen
 - Move your device until you see the subject you want to photograph
 - If your subject looks blurry, tap on it on the screen to focus the camera.
- 4. Take the photo
 - Look for a round button (usually at the bottom of the screen) with a white circle.
 - Press this button to take the photo.





iPhone

Android

How to take videos

- **1.** Look for a button labelled video that switches between photo and video modes.
- 2. Press the red button to start recording. The button is usually located at the bottom of the screen.
- 3. Press the **red button** again to stop recording when you're done.



iPhone



Android





Do you know

S. States

RR

Be Connected is an Australian government initiative committed to increasing the confidence, skills, and online safety of older Australians. Scan the QR code to further build your digital skills.







How to view your photos and videos

1. Find the **Photos** app on your home screen and tap it to open the app.



2. Once the app is open, you will see all your photos and videos. Tap on any photo or video to view it in full screen.





iPhone

Android

How to look up a fitness video

There are plenty of ways to look after your health and wellbeing online. A good tool is YouTube, which lets you look up all kinds of fitness and wellbeing videos. This section takes you through how to look up a fitness video online.

- Tap on YouTube app. If you don't have this already you can download the app on an iPad/iPhone via your App Store or Play Store on Android
- **2.** Once you've downloaded YouTube it should look like this on your iPhone, iPad or Android.



To search a fitness video on YouTube

- 1. Tap the YouTube icon to open the app
- 2. Tap Search
- 3. Tap Videos
- **4.** Enter a search term. In this search we have used 'slow fitness for seniors'
- **5.** A variety of videos will come up, you can choose which video you would like.

You can now search any fitness video you like. You can include in your search how long you want it for and how intense you want it e.g slow, medium pace or fast depending on your ability.

You can practice your YouTube search skills by searching some health and wellbeing videos.

- Health and wellness for seniors
- 5-minute finger and hand stiffness exercise
- Senior health and fitness
- Easy Yoga with Senior Citizens
- Senior stretching exercises
- Seater Exercises for Older Adults
- Warm up for Seniors, Beginner Exercises
- 5-minute warm-up and cool-down routine for seniors and beginners
- Senior exercises at home
- 15-minute workout for Older Adults
- Exercises for Seniors with Music from the 50's, 60's and 70's









Would you like to learn more?

Logan North Library offers free face to face sessions with volunteer tutors. The sessions run throughout the week and can be booked on the Logan City Council Libraries website.

loganlibraries.org



Useful health and wellbeing webpages

There are many websites and pages that can support you to stay connected with your local community, try Googling the below to find details about groups and activities near you.

- Logan City Council events
- Seniors in Logan
- Active & Healthy Logan
- Council cabs Logan
- TransitCare
- Chatty Café Logan
- Senior pets for senior people
- Leisure Centres in Logan
- LECNA Cards Group
- Logan Village Craft Group
- Greenbank over 50s social club
- Loganlea Forever Young Seniors Group
- Crestmead 40+
- Beenleigh Women's Social Group
- Eagleby Seniors Connect
- Logan Area Committee on the Ageing Inc (LACOTA)
- Churches in Logan

References

The Logan Youth Action Group, Logan City Council and the Logan Seniors Network would like to reference that some of the content in this guide was resourced from existing sources including the Australian Government Advanced online security website.





Logan City Council

- 150 Wembley Road, Logan Central, QLD 4114
- S 3412 3412
- council@logan.qld.gov.au

